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From: Alison McIntyre <Alison.McIntyre@dia.govt.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 23 March 2021 8:01 AM
To: Gillian Stone
Subject: National Library Application to export Overseas Published Collections
Attachments: Application to export OPC.docx

Importance: High

Mōrena Gillian, 
 
Attached is the document containing details of the Overseas Published Collections as discussed. 
 
I will formally submit the application to export later today. 
 
Ngā mihi, 
 
 
 
Alison McIntyre (she/her)| Principal Advisor | Office of the National Librarian  
National Library of New Zealand Te Puna Mātauranga o Aotearoa 
 
Direct Dial: 
www.natlib.govt.nz  
 
The National Library of New Zealand is part of the Department of Internal Affairs 
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Application for permission to export a protected New Zealand object from New Zealand 

A. Details of Applicant 

1. Full name of individual and/or company, organisation, society etc who owns the object(s) 
being exported  

National Library of New Zealand Te Puna Mātauranga o Aotearoa 

 

2. Name, physical and postal address of applicant (person signing this form) 

Rachel Esson, National Librarian, 70 Molesworth Street, Thorndon, Wellington 6011 

 

3. Contact information for applicant 

Phone:  

Email: Rachel.esson@dia.govt.nz 

 

4. Who will be responsible for the export of the object(s) from New Zealand? 

Other: Internet Archive 

 

5. If the response to question 4 is not “applicant”, please give the name and address of the 
person and/or organisation who will be responsible for exporting the object(s) from New 
Zealand 

Chris Freeland, Internet Archive, Funston Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94118, United States 
of America or USA 

Phone: 

Fax: 

Email: chrisfreeland@archive.org 

 

B. Ministry Information Notice 

 

C. Description of Objects 

Please use additional paper if you do not have enough space to complete description of 
objects 

6. Title or name of object; include its common name ie. painting, traction engine etc 

Overseas Published Collections (OPC): An assemblage of library collections of up to 600,000 
overseas published books which formed part of the National Library’s General Collections.  

7. Age of object (please state if age known or estimated) 

S9(2)(a)
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The origins of the OPC were in the Country Library Service in 1939 and became the property 
of the National Library when it was formed in 1965.The OPC was actively developed until 
1996 after which the focus for the collection was confined to  targeted areas – business 
information, family history, music, and library and information science.  

Approximately 225,000 of the books were published prior to 1971. In 1992 the median date 
of publication for books in the collection fell between 1965 and 1969 across most subjects.  

 

8. Value of object in New Zealand dollars (please state if value known or estimated) 

NZ$  

The OPC is a fully depreciated asset of the National Library. 

 

9. Where was the object made, and/or where and when was it found? 

The OPC is an assemblage of library collections of overseas published material with its 
origins in the Country Library Service. 

The National Library of New Zealand developed the collections by acquiring books published 
overseas. Books purchased for the collections were intended for general interest reading, 
with an emphasis on the arts and the humanities and general information for a public library 
readership.The purpose of the OPC is to supplement and further the work of other libraries 
in New Zealand, a purpose it is no longer serving. 

The OPC are part of the General Collection which is a working collection of published items 
that depreciate as assets over a 20-year period. 

Items from the General Collection, including the OPC, can be accessed through New 
Zealand’s local public libraries, university libraries, school libraries and other libraries 
through the inter-library loan system (interloan) and in the National Library’s Wellington 
reading rooms.  Until the 1990’s books from the OPC were regularly borrowed by readers 
through New Zealand’s network of public and university libraries but issues have been in 
decline and last year less than 1% of them were used.  

 

Donations of books weeded from the collections of other libraries were added to the OPC 
between 1960 and 1990. 

10. Who made or created the object? (individual or company) 

The National Library of New Zealand.  

Since 1996 the collection has been managed according to the National Library Collections 
Policy. The National Library Collections Policy was updated in 2015 following extensive 
consultation. 
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Books that fit with the National Library’s collecting priorities as set out in the 2015 
Collections Policy and Collecting Plan are being retained. All titles less than 20 years old will 
also be retained. Books that are outside of these criteria are flagged for removal.  

 

The review of the OPC employs a multi-step process which includes publishing lists of all of 
the books on the National Library’s website. It serves to test our assumption that the books 
are no longer needed and allows for the books to be rehomed in other libraries, so they 
continue to be accessible via interloan. At the time of writing 2,176 books had been 
rehomed by 40 libraries in the interloan system.  

 

The OPC books are being reviewed by librarians including Alexander Turnbull Library (ATL) 
Research Enquiries Team Librarians, and Curators, including the Curator of Rare Books and 
Fine Printing. They have expert knowledge of librarianship and of how published and 
unpublished material is used in the National Library’s Reading Rooms and what might be 
considered documentary heritage for New Zealand. 

Other checks have been completed such as comparing the Ministry for Culture and Heritage 
complete bibliographies of titles cited in Te Ara: The Encyclopaedia of New Zealand as one 
source for overseas published books relevant to understanding the New Zealand experience. 
There was found to be very little overlap between the OPC and the bibliographies. 

Members of the public including researchers, scholars and historians have been invited to 
email the project team if they see any titles in the published lists that they believe should be 
retained by the National Library and that meet the Collections Policy. 

The review process is expected to result in the retention of up to 10% of the books from the 
OPC. Books will be retained and therefore not exported if they: 

 fit with the National Library’s collecting priorities as set out in the 2015 Collections 
Policy and collecting plan;  

 are less than 20 years old; or  

 are requested by other libraries in the interloan system.  

At the end of the review process the National Library’s preferred option is to export the 
remaining books to: 

 National Libraries in the interloan system; and then 

 Internet Archive for non-destructive digitisation and long-term preservation. 

 

11. Dimensions, model and make of object, and the significant materials used 

12. Marks, distinguishing characteristics, serial numbers and/or registration numbers on the 
object 
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Books in the OPC are fully catalogued with electronic records. Spine labels show Dewey 
Decimal classifications and primary entry details for each book. The books have National 
Library ownership stamps, accession date stamps, accession numbers, date due slips, 
barcodes and other library markings.  

Some of the books acquired by donation have bookplates showing their library of origin. This 
provenance information is not recorded in the catalogue records. Formal donation 
agreements are retained in the Library’s corporate records although most did not include 
title lists. 

13. Known history of the object 

The Overseas Published Collections (OPC) form part of the National Library’s General 
Collection which is a current use collection.  The OPC contains mostly English language books 
purchased for general interest reading, with an emphasis on the arts and the humanities and 
general information for a public library readership. Some books that were no longer needed 
by public libraries were accepted into the OPC prior to 1990. 

Timeline 

 1939: The OPC first created as part of the Country Library Service which supported 
public libraries throughout New Zealand.  

 1965: The National Library Act (1965) formed the National Library of New Zealand.  

 1984: Online cataloguing of OPC began with the introduction of the first electronic 
Library Management System.  

 1985: The General Assembly Library was separated from the National Library to 
become the Parliamentary Library. 

 1991 (August): The Internet went live to the public. 

 1992: Peak in lending for books from National Library’s General Collection - 80,016 
books issued after which use has consistently declined year on year. 

 1992: A formal assessment (Conspectus) measured the research strength of the OPC 
which was found to be at basic study level in most subject areas (equivalent to 
undergraduate level) with a median date of publication between 1965 and 1969. 

 1995: A Crown Law opinion was sought which advised that disposal of documents 
from General Collections was lawful in carrying out the National Librarian’s function 
to develop and maintain a national collection of library material. 

 1996: The first National Library Collections Policy introduced a common policy 
framework for the General Lending Collections, Schools Collection and Alexander 
Turnbull Library Collections. The National Librarian’s intention to remove books that 
were outside the scope of the Collections Policy was expressly signalled.  

The 1996 Collections Policy stated – The National Library’s Collections will be 
increasingly focussed on New Zealand and Pacific resources, with overseas published 
resources making up a smaller component of tailored General Collections. 

 1999: A review of OPC was initiated to align the General Collection with the 
Collections Policy (1996). Books published before 1977, that had not been issued 
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since 1987 and had no or insignificant New Zealand or Pacific content were flagged 
for review.  

 1999 (May): review of the OPC became an election issue and was halted following a 
change of Government. Approximately 44,000 books were removed before the 
project was suspended. The withdrawn books were from the subject areas of 
mathematics, anthropology, chemistry, computer science and history. Approximately 
12,000 were rehomed to thirty libraries and the rest (approximately 32,000) were 
sold by tender to a second-hand-book-dealer. 

 2000: Funding made available to create electronic catalogue records and to form a 
Low Use Collection to be housed off site at Wairere House, the former New Zealand 
Police Computer Centre in Whanganui. 

 2003: National Library of New Zealand (Te Puna Mātauranga o Aotearoa) Act 2003 

 2005: Retrospective cataloguing of low use OPC collection completed. 

 2008: Minister Responsible for the National Library, Hon Judith Tizzard, approved 
removal of two extensive donations that were outside the scope of the General 
Collections – Ex-Parliamentary Library material and the Opfermann collection. 

 2011: National Library integrated into the Department of Internal Affairs.  

 2015: National Library’s Turning knowledge into Value - strategic directions to 2030 
published. 

 2015: National Library Collections Policy reviewed and updated following extensive 
consultation. Policy changes consulted included but were not limited to:  

o Increasing priority to focus on New Zealand and Pacific Island resources, with 
less overseas resources being collected; 

o Focusing General collections to support reference services provided to 
individuals and libraries covering most New Zealand published material, 
including the second copy of legal deposit and relevant subjects that meet the 
current information needs of New Zealanders; 

o Using digital technologies for connecting New Zealanders to the content and 
information important to their lives, which have been collected, maintained 
or made available in other parts of the global library network; 

o Facilitating access for users in preference to acquiring and owning content 
other than New Zealand and Pacific material. 

 2018: Plan to exit Wairere House triggered a review of OPC in order to reduce the 
volume of the collections in alignment with the 2015 revision of the Collections 
Policy.  

 2018: Minister of Internal Affairs, Tracey Martin, approved the removal, over time, of 
all publications from the OPC, excluding those in subject areas identified as collecting 
priorities in the Overseas Collecting Plan in alignment with the 2015 National Library 
Collections Policy. 

 2019: National Librarian, Bill Macnaught, announced the commencement of a project 
to rehome books from the OPC at the LIANZA Conference. 

 2019: First Lists of books for review published on the National Library’s website.  
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 2020: Internet Archive offers to take all books remaining following the review 
process for digitisation to provide free access from their global digital library and to 
preserve the physical copies. 

 2020: Around 50,000 books donated to Lions and Rotary for a special one-off 
fundraiser. 

14. Any other information 

The National Library will continue to retain a smaller more focussed Overseas Published 
Collection that will be reviewed regularly in line with our Collections Policy.  

15. Details of any publication in which this object has been listed or photographed 

The collection has been listed in Te Puna, the combined catalogue of New Zealand libraries 
on WorldCat. WorldCat is the world’s largest network of library content and services and 
provides access to their resources on the Web, where most people start their search for 
information. 

A record of all the items in the General Collections (including those already disposed of) has 
been kept and will be made publicly available. 

Type text here 
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2020-21/Pexp/9 
 
APPLICATION TO PERMANENTLY EXPORT PROTECTED OBJECT 
 
Application to permanently export a collection of deaccessioned overseas 
publications owned by the National Library.   
 
Applicant: Alison McIntyre | Principal Advisor | Office of the National Librarian 
National Library of New Zealand Te Puna Mātauranga o Aotearoa 
 
via email: Alison.McIntyre@dia.govt.nz 
 
Exporter: National Library of New Zealand Te Puna Mātauranga o Aotearoa 
 
Protected Object: A collection of deaccessioned overseas publications numbering 
approximately 625,000. Owned by the Country Library Service from 1939 to 1996 
then acquired by the National Library.   

 
Experts: 

 
 

a)  assessed this collection as not being a protected New 
Zealand object and that permission to export was not required. This Expert 
Examiner advised that “My knowledge of overseas collections held at 

(not as large, but comparable material) gave me a 
comparison collection with which to form an assessment”.  

b)  assessed the collection as being a protected New Zealand 
object and that permanent export would not substantially diminish New 
Zealand’s cultural heritage and that permission to export should be approved.  
This Expert Examiner advised that: “Despite the significance of the collection 
(in its constituent, historical parts) in the past and the role it has played in the 
development of NZ, it cannot be said that there is strong evidence it is used 
now”. 

 
Recommendation 
 
Given the recent public interest concerning retainment of National Library collections, 
and the outcome of the assessment from the , it is recommended that 
this collection be considered a protected New Zealand object and that permission be 
granted for permanent export under section 7 of the Protected Objects Act 1975. 
 
 

Signed      Date 10 May 2021  
Gillian Stone  
Senior Adviser, Te Pae Māpuna 
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DISAGREE 
 
 
 
Signed ………………………………………………… Date 10 May 2021  
Kartini Havell  
Acting Manager, Te Pae Māpuna 
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